
ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW TEAM  

 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
MARCH 27, 2014 

 
 
 
 
ART Members and Designees: Steve Langworthy, Planning Director; Gary Gunderman, 
Planning Manager; Alan Perkins, Fire Marshal; Barb Cox, Engineering Manager; Fred Hahn, 
Director of Parks and Open Space; Laura Ball, Landscape Architect; Jeff Tyler, Building 
Standards Director; and Colleen Gilger, Economic Development Director. 
 
Other Staff: Rachel Ray, Planner II; Jennifer Rauch, Planner II; and Laurie Wright, Staff 
Assistant.  
 
Applicants: Curtis Echelberry, Team DDS, Inc. (Case 1); Bob and Deanna Dyas, property 
owners; and Heidi Bolyard, Bolyard Architecture and Design Studio (Case 2). 
 
Steve Langworthy called the meeting to order. He asked if there were any amendments to the 
March 20, 2014, meeting minutes. [There were none.]  The minutes were accepted into the 
record as presented. 
 
DETERMINATION 

1. BSC-C - Shoppes at River Ridge - Medical Office Tenant  
Architectural Modifications            4395 W. Dublin-Granville Rd. 
14-020 MPR               Minor Project Review 
 

Rachel Ray said this is a proposal to add windows on the west (side) and south (rear) 
elevations of a new medical office tenant (dental office) in the Shoppes at River Ridge shopping 
center at the intersection of West Dublin-Granville Road and Dale Drive in the BSC Commercial 
District. She said this is a request for review and approval for Minor Project Review in 
accordance with Zoning Code Section 153.066(G). 
 
Ms. Ray said this proposal was introduced last week. She noted there are no modifications 
requested for the front elevation but four windows are proposed for the side and three groups 
of windows for the rear. She explained the elevations were revised from the previous week due 
to the placement of windows for the dental treatment offices. She said Planning had 
recommended more logical locations, from a building structure standpoint, away from columns, 
etc., to which the applicant complied.  
 
Steve Langworthy asked if there were any questions or comments. 
 
Jeff Tyler noted the storefront glazing, and some minor inconsistencies with the design of the 
windows with other windows in the stucco portions of the shopping center buildings, such as 
the fact that the applicant is not proposing to install awnings. After having conducted a site visit 

 

 
Land Use and Long 
Range Planning 
 
5800 Shier Rings Road 
Dublin, Ohio 43016-1236 

 
phone 614.410.4600 
fax  614.410.4747 
 
www.dublinohiousa.gov 
____________________ 

 



Administrative Review Team Meeting Minutes 
Thursday, March 27, 2014 

Page 2 of 4 
 
 
he said that since the windows are on the side of the building he is ok with the windows and 
their design. He said the applicant had already submitted building permits for the interior but 
may need revisions for the exterior modifications.  
 
Curtis Echelberry asked if a revised floor plan needed to be submitted. Mr. Tyler said Building 
Standards would review. 
 
Mr. Langworthy asked if there were any further questions or concerns with respect to this 
application. [There were none.]  
 
Mr. Langworthy confirmed the ART’s approval of this request for Minor Project Review with no 
conditions. 
 
CASE REVIEW 

2. BSC -HR – Dyas Residence – Architectural and Site Modifications 
180 South Riverview Street 

14-022ARB-MPR             Minor Project Review 
 

Jennifer Rauch said this is a proposal for architectural modifications including new siding, roof, 
windows, and doors and construction of a 483-square-foot building addition, and site 
modifications including a new driveway and replacement of an existing deck for a single-family 
home located on the east side of South Riverview Street, north of the intersection with Short 
Street in Historic Dublin. She said this is a request for review and approval of a Minor Project 
Review in accordance with Zoning Code Sections 153.066(G) and 153.170 and the Historic 
Dublin Design Guidelines. 
 
Ms. Rauch said the proposal was introduced last week. She said Heidi Bolyard was present as 
well as the homeowners, Bob & Susan Dyas. She said at the case introduction the ART 
expressed concerns with the location of the house with respect to the property lines and 
setback as well as the front loading garage. She explained even though there is no front 
setback requirement, the property lines need to be noted on the site plan. She questioned 
whether additional modification could or should be made to the design of the garage and the 
proposed garage door.  
 
Susan Dyas said they were open to any recommendations for possibly changing the look of the 
garage. Bob Dyas said they had completed some renovations on the inside of the home and 
were now working on the outside, hoping to capture more livable space and vehicular access to 
a garage as it is not possible in its current location due to the tight turn radius from the 
driveway. He said as it is currently just used as storage, they plan to turn the garage into a 
bunk room and bathroom and would agree to any changes proposed for the garage door. He 
explained the rear porch was in horrible shape and after structural analysis, they decided to 
remove the patio and add a deck.  
 
Heidi Bolyard questioned the property line on the site plan. 
  



Administrative Review Team Meeting Minutes 
Thursday, March 27, 2014 

Page 3 of 4 
 
 
Barb Cox said she reviewed the original plat of Historic Dublin and this showed a change in the 
right of width of South Riverview Street. She said an ordinance from 1981 vacated 7.5 feet on 
each side and all of this will need to be reflected correctly on the site plan. She will ask Franklin 
County to make the appropriate changes for this project and any future developments. 
 
Ms. Cox said she will send this information to Mr. Patridge, Jr. to update his plot plan. She 
questioned whether this will create a right-of-way or easement encroachment but emphasized 
the need for the proposed additions and improvements to be shown all on one plan instead of 
the various plans in order to determine if there is any kind of encroachment. She thought the 
right-of-way was a unique situation. She also inquired about the three-foot setback off the side 
of the lot, the gravel driveway, and the location of the sewer and water lines. 
 
Mr. Dyas asked if they could make the addition bigger. Ms. Cox said she would not know until 
she could see all the lines as they related to this property. 
 
Fred Hahn asked about the purpose of the easement. Ms. Cox responded it was for public utility 
use. 
 
Mr. Dyas asked if the sewer lines were located in there also. Ms. Cox thought the sewer might 
be closer to the pavement with the water on the other side of the street.  
 
Steve Langworthy asked if the easement was recorded for this portion of Riverside Drive and 
inquired about the other properties. 
 
Ms. Cox said at the time, encroachments into the right-of-way existed and the reduction in the 
right-of-way width (from 50 feet to 35 feet) eliminated this situation. She confirmed that 35 feet 
in width is good for S. Riverview Street. Ms. Rauch said it needed to be reflected on the 
proposed site plan. 
 
Ms. Rauch noted the proposed gravel driveway is not a permitted driveway material and would 
need to be revised. 
 
Mr. Dyas said there was no curb cut. Ms. Dyas said the gravel in the front lining the street 
served as parking for several neighboring properties. Mr. Dyas said he would remove the old 
gravel driveway and re-sod the yard. Ms. Cox said that was preferable and wanted to see just 
one driveway. 
 
Mr. Langworthy asked if there were any additional questions or comments. 
  
Jeff Tyler asked if the water table could be wrapped from the front to at least the sides of the 
home. Mr. Dyas agreed to wrap the water table on three sides, excluding the rear.  
 
Ms. Rauch questioned the possibility of changing the architecture to draw attention away from 
the front-loaded garage. Heidi Bolyard suggested a flush carriage door to which Mr. Dyas 
agreed. Mr. Tyler agreed and recommended keeping the design as simple as possible as that  
 



Administrative Review Team Meeting Minutes 
Thursday, March 27, 2014 

Page 4 of 4 
 
 
was the character and charm of the home. He said additional design features would call 
attention to the front-loaded garage and said no other architectural changes should be made.  
 
Ms. Rauch confirmed the existing planters on the side of the chimney would be removed. 
 
Steve Langworthy asked if there were any further questions or concerns with respect to this 
application. [There were none.]  He stated the target date for the Administrative Review Team’s 
recommendation to the Architectural Review Board is scheduled for April 3rd for the April 23, 
2014 ARB meeting. 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE 

Mr. Langworthy asked if there were any administrative issues or other items for discussion. 
[There were none.]  The meeting was adjourned at 2:32 pm. 


